
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

         31 January 2014 
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

will meet on 
Monday, 10 February 2014 

beginning at 
5:30 pm 

PLEASE NOTE CHANGE OF START TIME 
in 

Committee Room, Civic Offices, Leigh Road, Eastleigh 

 
TO: Councillor Anne Winstanley (Chair), Councillor Daniel Clarke (Vice-Chair) 

Councillor Mrs Cathie Fraser Councillor Keith House 
Councillor Wayne Irish Councillor Godfrey G Olson 
Councillor Derek R Pretty Councillor Steve Sollitt 
Councillor Mrs Jane Welsh  

 
 
Staff Contacts: Cheryll Kemsley, Democratic Services Officer Tel:  023 8068 8112; 

Email: cheryll.kemsley@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 

  
 

RICHARD WARD 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the 
Council's website - 

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings 
as well as in other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and 

other languages, upon request. 
 

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the 
start of the meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the 
item is discussed.  To register please contact the Democratic 

Services Officer above 
Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, 
sound recording and photography at meetings open to the public. 

 

 
Civic Offices, Leigh Road, 

Eastleigh SO50 9YN 



 

 

AGENDA 

 
1. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 4)  

 To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 25 November 2013.  
  
2. Apologies     
 
3. Declarations of Interest      

 Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes.  

  
4. Proposed Vehicle Age Policy    (Pages 5 - 20) 
 
5. Polling Review 2013/14    (Pages 21 - 28) 

 
 

 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Monday, 7 July 2014 at 6:00 pm 

at Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

 
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news  - 

 
Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews  

 
 



ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 
 

Monday, 25 November 2013  (6:00 pm – 6:25 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Winstanley (Chair); Councillors Clarke, Irish, Olson, Pretty and 
Mrs Welsh 
 
Also in attendance: Councillor Grajewski 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Mrs Fraser, House 
and Sollitt 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

1. MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 5 September 2013 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
Councillor Daniel Clarke declared an interest in agenda item 4, Community 
Governance Review - West End Parish Wards, because he is a West End 
Parish Councillor. 
 

3. COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW - WEST END PARISH WARDS 
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Legal and Democratic 
Services that set out the findings of the local community governance 
review. 
 
Earlier in the year, a request was received from West End Parish Council 
to conduct a review in respect of its warding arrangements. The Parish 
Council suggested that it would be more accountable if it had more wards 
but smaller; it was not seeking to change its membership number of 14.  
 
The review was publicised in the local press, notice boards and the 
Council’s website. The Parish Council produced a consultation leaflet 
which was delivered to every household in the parish. A summary of the 
consultation responses was set out in Appendix 1 to the report. 
 
During discussion, Members were very supportive of the proposals, and 
agreed that it would benefit the Parish Council and help residents to know 
who their local councillor was. 

Agenda Item 1

1



 
RESOLVED -    
 
(1) That the findings of the community governance review in 

respect of the warding arrangements at West End Parish 
Council be noted, and residents thanked for their 
contributions; 

 
(2) That the warding arrangements be revised as per West End 

Parish Council’s original request and as per paragraph 21 of 
the report, following no substantially adverse comments 
received during the consultation; and 

 
(3) That the revised arrangements be progressed so as to take 

effect from the next elections for West End Parish Council in 
May 2015. 

 
(NOTE: Councillor Clarke declared an interest on this item, remained in 
the room and spoke and voted.) 
 

4. INDIVIDUAL ELECTORAL REGISTRATION 
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services that outlined the proposals and implications for 
individual electoral registration due to come into force in 2014. 
 
Members were advised that the individual electoral registration (IER) was 
being introduced nationally to reduce electoral fraud and improve the 
completeness and accuracy of the electoral register.  
 
The Council’s test run of this new process had had an 84% match with 
Department of Works and Pensions (DWP) records (one of the highest in 
the country). Work had now concluded to raise this figure higher with ‘local 
matching’ against the Council Tax register so that there was less work 
transferring across to an IER based register next year; a complete match 
now stood at 88%. 
 
Central Government had provided a grant of £28K which could be 
increased to £35K if minor conditions were met. There was no doubt that 
this would be a difficult task, there were significant changes and 
implications involved, and it would become the individual’s responsibility to 
inform the Elections team of any changes to their circumstances as the 
Team would no longer be able to obtain this information from other 
sources. It was anticipated that canvassers would experience difficulties 
obtaining dates of birth and national insurance numbers as people 
generally were reluctant to part with this information. In the longer term, 
additional administrative support would likely be required to assist with an 
increase in queries, verification checks, understanding the new process, 
and handling a large increase in paper forms. 
 

2



RESOLVED -    
 
That the implications of IER for the Council be noted and the 
proposed awareness raising methods be endorsed. 
 
(NOTE: Councillor Grajewski raised concerns that residents would not be 
prepared to declare their personal information; and asked if there were 
sufficient resources to ensure that the process ran smoothly.) 
 

5. PROPOSED POLICY FOR THE INSTALLATION OF CLOCK/CALENDAR 
CONTROLLED METERS IN HACKNEY CARRIAGES 
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services that provided details of the proposed policy for the 
installation of clock/calendar controlled meters in hackney carriages 
licensed by the Borough Council. 
 
The use of the clock/calendar controlled meter would lead to absolute 
public protection, it would be locked into the taximeter, and the automation 
of the fares in this way would leave no room for interpretation of the fare 
charge by the driver. Universal charging meant that the ‘chips’ ran for an 
18, 36 or 60 month calendar period, depending on cost. They all had the 
same ‘end date’ so if a driver purchased a chip six months into the 18 
month calendar, like a diary, he would have lost six months usage.  
 
As each calendar ‘chip’ would only last an average of eighteen months, it 
was recommended that if the Trade were minded to seek a fare review 
then this should be undertaken to coincide with the eighteen monthly chip 
update installation.  
 
No additional buttons would be fitted to the meter and the drivers would do 
little more than switch it on and off. The majority of taxis had the new style 
meter fitted and this policy would only affect a small number of vehicles 
that had the old style. 
 
RESOLVED -    
 
(1) That the proposed policy for the installation of clock/calendar 

control meters in hackney carriages be adopted and take effect 
from 1 January 2014, and that all meters that require changing 
be fitted and tested by 1 April 2014; and 
 

(2) That if the Trade were minded to seek a fare review then this 
should be undertaken to coincide with the eighteen monthly 
calendar chip update installation. 

 
M5058 
 
 

3



4

This page is intentionally left blank



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

ADMINISTRATION COMMITEE 

10 February 2014 

PROPOSED VEHICLE AGE POLICY  

Report of the Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

(1) It is recommended that the Council introduces a Vehicle Age Policy as 
Appendix 1 to this report with effect from October 2014 relating to both 
Private Hire and Hackney Carriage Vehicles. 
 

(2) With effect from 1 October 2014 a vehicle first presented for licensing will 
only be licensed as a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle if it is no more 
than 7 years old. 

(3) With effect from 1 October 2014 hackney carriage or private hire vehicles over 
15 years old will no longer be licensed, reducing to 12 years by 1 October 
2017 as shown in appendix 1.   

(4) With effect from 1 October 2014 an exemption to the policy in 3 above will be 
made for purpose built wheelchair accessible vehicles and those with 
executive certificates issued by Eastleigh Borough Council which will 
continue to be licensed until they reach 15 years of age.   

(5) The Head of Legal and Democratic Services be given authority to depart from 
this policy in such cases where departure be justified.   

 
 

Summary 
 
It is proposed to introduce a vehicle age policy for vehicles licensed by the Council as 
hackney carriages or private hire vehicles.  This will ensure that the licensed fleet 
comprises more modern vehicles which will meet higher safety standards and more 
modern emission standards.   

Statutory Powers 
 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 

Town Police Clauses Act 1847 

 

Agenda Item 4

5



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Introduction 

1. The Borough Council has a statutory role in the licensing of hackney carriage 
and private hire vehicles.  There are currently 101 hackney carriages and 435 
private hire vehicles licensed by the Council (as of January 2014).   

Background 

2. At present the Council’s only policy requirement in respect of licensed 
vehicles is that once a vehicle reaches 6 years of age it is required to be 
inspected every 6 months.  A number of local licensing authorities have 
adopted age policies beyond which they will not licence vehicles.  Most of 
those apply two age limits: the first when a vehicle is first presented for 
licensing as a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle and the second being 
the age beyond which the vehicle will no longer be licensed.  The justification 
for applying age limits is that a smart, modern fleet enhances the character of 
the borough and makes licensed vehicles more attractive to the fare paying 
public.  In addition, the removal of older vehicles improves safety standards 
and addresses environmental concerns as newer vehicles are required to 
meet increasingly stringent environmental, performance and safety standards.   

Carbon Emissions 

3. In recognition to the Council’s wider role, the licensing authority will normally 
seek to promote and encourage vehicle proprietors to invest in vehicles and 
related technologies that offer the best environmental standards in terms of 
emissions, the use of cleaner fuel and engine efficiencies (ie performance) 
and end of life recycling etc.  According to the Department of Transport 
statistics the average CO2 emissions has decreased over the years from 
177.8 g/km in 2001 to 133 g/km in 2012.  Therefore newer cars on average 
produce less CO2 emissions than older vehicles.   

Consultation/Communications 

4. The issue of an age policy was first raised at the Licensed Transport Forum 
Meeting in January 2013.  Following this meeting a working party was set up 
consisting of Cllr Airey, Cllr M Hughes, Licensing Officers and forum members 
from the hackney and private hire trade.  Following discussions a proposal 
was made that any new vehicles to be licensed should be no more than 7 
years of age from the date of first registration (taken from the DVLA vehicle 
registration document) and no more than 12 years of age on renewal (taken 
from the DVLA vehicle registration document).  Consultation letters were sent 
to vehicle owners of licensed private hire and hackney carriage vehicles.  260 
letters were sent and 99 responses were received.  Please note that should a 
vehicle owner own more than 1 vehicle they would still only receive 1 letter 
and 1 response.    

5. From the responses that were received 51% were against the proposal and 
49% were for the proposal.  A number of comments were also received which 
are attached to this report as appendix 2.  The main concern was the cost 

6



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

implication of buying a newer vehicle.  The Council will implement this age 
policy over a number of years to allow drivers time to prepare for buying a 
newer vehicle.  Comments were also received about wheelchair accessible 
and executive cars as these are usually more expensive to buy and have 
lower mileage.   Purpose built wheelchair accessible vehicles are of specific 
construction which generally means they have a longer life expectancy than 
an ordinary car or similar vehicle.    The policy has been revised so that 
purpose built wheelchair accessible vehicles and those vehicles with 
Executive Car exemptions issued by the Council will have an upper age limit 
of 15 years. 

6. Other Councils within Hampshire were also contacted as to their age policies.  
Their age policies are shown in appendix 3.  The majority of Councils have an 
age policy for both private hire and hackney carriages and are more onerous 
than the proposed policy stated in this report.   

Options and Options Appraisal  

7. If the proposed policy were not adopted then it is likely that the licensed fleet 
would continue to comprise a mix of vehicle ages, a number of which will be 
of some considerable age.  It could be argued that older vehicles detract from 
the amenity of the borough and there is also issues relating to vehicle safety 
and the environmental aspects associated with emission standards.  The 
introduction of this age policy would help in achieving the Council policy 
objectives relating to Environmental issues.  As hackney carriage and private 
hire vehicles are often one of the first points of contact for the travelling public 
and visitors and a smart and modern fleet would enhance the character of the 
borough.  It also would make the vehicles smarter and more attractive to the 
fare paying public.  

8. Officers have considered the results of the consultation and responded 
accordingly concerning executive cars and purpose built wheelchair 
accessible vehicles.   

Financial Implications 

9. There will be no direct costs implications for the Council as a result of this 
recommendation.  At the time of writing this report there are 9 licensed vehicle 
aged over 15 years and if the policy were adopted these will not be licensed 
after October 2014.  Owners of such vehicles will have over 8 months to 
replace them with newer vehicles.  There would be a further 78 vehicles aged 
between 12 and 14 years which owners would need to replace in line with the 
timescale mentioned in appendix 1.  The gradual introduction of the 12 year 
upper age limit over the following 3 years is considered appropriate in helping 
vehicle owners plan for the future replacement of vehicles such that no owner 
should be unduly inconvenienced by the proposed policy.        

Legal Implications 

10. Article 1 of the first protocol of the European Convention of Human Rights 
provides that every person is entitled to peaceful enjoyment of their 

7



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

possessions and a licence has been held to be a possession for the purposes 
of this legislation.  However, this article does not inhibit the right of local 
authorities to enforce such laws as it deems necessary to control the use of 
possessions in accordance with the general interest.  Arguably, refusing to 
renew a vehicle licence based upon age would interfere with this right.  
However, if the Committee takes a view that such interference is justified in 
the general interest then an age limit is permissible.  Further support for the 
introduction of a vehicle age policy is that the majority of other local authorities 
have such a policy.    

Equality and Diversity 

11. An Equalities Impact Assessment has not been undertaken as the proposed 
recommendation does not represent a significant policy change.  The policy in 
relation to the maximum permitted age for purpose built wheelchair accessible 
vehicles recognises that the Council does not wish to see a reduction in the 
numbers of this type of vehicle as it would not wish to adversely impact upon 
the provision of public transport for wheelchair users.   

Conclusion 

12. The adoption of a vehicle age policy will result in a smart modern fleet which 
enhances the character of the Borough and makes hackney carriages and 
private hire vehicles more attractive to the fare paying public.  Having a fleet 
of more modern vehicles will reduce the potential for driver and passenger 
injuries and address environmental concerns by ensuring that stricter 
emission level standards are achieved.   

RICHARD WARD  
Head of Legal and Democratic Services  

 
 

Date: 28 January 2013 
Contact Officer: Jennifer Dunn  
Tel No: 023 80688109 
e-mail: Jennifer.dunn@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: Three 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. List 
Background Papers  
 
Department for Transport Vehicle Licensing Statistics 
European New Car Assessment Programme  
EUROPEAN NEW CAR ASSESSMENT PROGRAMME 
 

8



Appendix 1 
 

Licensed Vehicle Age Policy 
 
Introduction  
Hackney carriage and private hire vehicles are often one of the first points of 
contact for the travelling public and visitors and a smart and modern fleet 
enhances the character of the Borough and makes hackney carriages and 
private hire vehicles more attractive and comfortable to the fare paying public.   
 
With this in mind Eastleigh Borough Council will facilitate continuous vehicle 
improvement and efficiency (whereby new vehicles are generally required to 
meet extant and increasingly stringent environmental, performance and safety 
standards) and improve vehicle standards and maintenance (by ensuring that 
vehicles are not already ‘tired’ before being licensed and therefore more likely 
to withstand the rigours of use) by way of this policy.  
 
Emissions 
In recognition of the Councils wider role, the licensing authority will normally 
seek to promote and encourage vehicle proprietors to invest in vehicles and 
related technologies that offer the best environmental standards in terms of 
emissions, the use of cleaner fuels, fuel and engine efficiency (ie 
performance) and end of life recycling etc.  By way of encouraging a well 
maintained more sustainable, environmentally friendly and efficient fleet and 
subject to all other requirements being met, vehicles will only be licensed as a 
hackney carriage or private hire vehicle on both first application and 
subsequent renewal, the vehicle meets current emission standards as those 
required for a MOT.  
 
Alternative Fuels 
In recognition of their comparatively clean emissions, any vehicle that runs or 
has been suitably adapted to run on Liquid Petroleum Gas (LPG), 
compressed Natural Gas (CNG) or Biomethane will normally be exempt from 
the European emission standard requirements.  However for reasons of 
safety and environmental efficiency, this exemption shall only apply to 
vehicles converted from diesel to one of the three alternative fuels given 
above (petrol conversions will not be eligible)  
 
Vehicle Age 
It is proposed that when a vehicle is first presented for licensing it shall be 
under 7 years old – taken from the DVLA first vehicle registration (as shown 
on the vehicle registration document V5) or in the case of a vehicle used 
outside the UK when first used on any other roads of any description.  The 
vehicle will be inspected annually and licensed for a period of 12 months.  In 
the case of a vehicle transfer where the vehicle will be licensed up to the 
expiry date on the exsiting licence.  When the vehicle reaches 6 years old – 
taken from the date of the DVLA registration (as shown on the vehicle 
registration document V5) – it will be required to be inspected every 6 months 
at VOSA registered garage in the Eastleigh Borough.   

9



Initially the vehicle may be licensed up until the age of 15 years old – taken 
from the first date of the DVLA registration (registration document V5) and will 
then be reduced by a sliding scale down to the age of 12 years – taken from 
the first date of DVLA registration (registration document V5) date over a 
period of 4 years as follows: 
 
1 October 2014 vehicle over the age of 15 years will no longer be licensed 
 
1 October 2015 vehicle over the age of 14 years will no longer be licensed 
 
1 October 2016 vehicle over the age of 13 years will no longer be licensed 
 
1 October 2017 vehicle over the age of 12 years will no longer be licensed 
 
The two exceptions to the above will be in respect of purpose built (ie not 
converted) wheelchair accessible vehicles and executive vehicles that have 
an exemption from the Licensing Department are appropriate to be licensed 
until they are fifteen years of age.  The relaxation also recognises the 
substantial financial investment made by the owners of such vehicles.  
Introducing an upper age limit for licensed vehicles will assist in removing 
from the fleet older vehicles which do not meet more recent vehicle safety 
standards as set by the European New Car Assessment Programme 
(EuroNCAP).  By way of an example, a 1997 Ford Mondeo has an adult 
occupancy score of 17 whereas the 2007 version of the same car has a score 
of 35.  Ensuring the licensed vehicle fleet comprises more modern vehicles 
with higher safety standards and reduces the potential for serious and fatal 
injuries resulting from vehicle accidents.   
 
Summary 
The Borough Council believes that introducing a vehicle age policy will result 
in a smart modern fleet which enhances the character of the Borough and 
makes hackney carriages and private hire vehicles more attractive to the fare 
paying public.  Having a fleet of more modern vehicles will reduce the 
potential for driver and passenger injuries and address environmental 
concerns by ensuring that stricter emission level standards are achieved.  In 
summary the borough Council is proposing that as from October 2014: 

• Newly licensed vehicles must be no more than seven years old.   

• Newly licensed vehicles must meet the current European emission 
standards in force at that time.  

• There will an upper age limit for vehicles beyond which they will not be 
licensed starting with vehicles over 15 years reducing to vehicles aged 
over 12 years (except purposed built wheelchair accessible vehicles 
and vehicles which have been granted executive badges which may be 
licensed up to 15 years old) 

• Once a vehicle is more than 6 years old it must be inspected twice a 
year, not annually (no change from the current policy).   

 

10



Appendix 2  
 
Comments regarding Age Policy 
 
 
No  

 

• There are still some excellent vehicles available at 8 years old and the Hedge End 
Depot Initial inspection would/should detect any major faults.   

 

• The profitability of taxis in Eastleigh has declined to a point where it is almost 
impossible to earn a living wage.  This proposed age restriction will add further 
unnecessary costs.  As long as the vehicle is fit for purpose it should be allowed to be 
plated.  My own vehicle cost £25k.  This would only have a 10 years working life.  I 
could not afford the wage of £2500 per year.   

 

• Provided the vehicle passed the vehicle licence test which is set by the Council the age 
of the vehicle should not matter.  In this present financial climate we should be saving 
money not spending it.  I believe that this will increase fares to enable drivers to afford 
the extra costs.   

 

• Why do you feel the need to keep adding extra costs to private hire vehicles.  Private 
hire is struggling as it is and yet you keep putting more and more **** in force.  We will 
all be out of a job if you continue.  Please help us instead of robbing us. (then further 
comments not relevant)  

 

• My car is already 13 years old and still in very good condition.  My husbands car is 15 
years old and also in very good condition.  I am struggling to make this job financially 
viable if you bring in this condition you will lose many drivers, taxis and revenue to your 
Council as my husband and I cannot afford to buy newer vehicles and therefore would 
have to leave this job.  I am ‘an asset to our company” as a lady driver who is flexible 
with working hours.  Eastleigh Cabs will lose out and more importantly so will our 
elderly customers who rely on me greatly  

 

• I don’t think a car should be judged on its age alone. When a car is tested it then should 
be inspected for its appearance and I think this should be done once a car has been 
used as a taxi or private hire for more than 3 years.  I have seen cars that are not as old 
as mine but look in a bad way.   

 

• Not a lot of work in Eastleigh for me to buy a 7 year old car.  My car is tidy and has 
MOT twice yearly so why would I want to buy a new car.  Some people do not respect 
our property.   

 

• Condition and road worthiness is a bigger concern than age.  You have licensed 
vehicles that do not comply with your own conditions but they still operate.  If the 
vehicle is in good condition what has the age got to do with it.  All I can see this doing is 
pushing up prices and fares in the private hire sector.   

 

• There is not enough work for the taxi driver if you put this condition taxi driver will not 
afford to have 7 years old car at the beginning.  EBC will lose more than half drivers in 
Eastleigh or more. This is not a good idea.   

 

11



• I have always thought that the Councils own vehicle check was the benchmark as to 
whether a car was fit for purpose.  Bringing in this proposal would make a mockery of 
that.  I have seen 20 year old cars kept in better condition than some that are 5 years 
old.  Also from a financial point of view, this proposal would create further hardships on 
many drivers already struggling in the current economic climate, forcing some to go out 
of business altogether.  

 

• With regards to some private hire vehicles I agree the condition of the vehicles needs to 
improve, but we deal with the top end of the private hire trade and only buy quality 2nd 
hand prestige vehicles – Mercedes, jaguar and display exemption discs and all our 
vehicles are in good condition irrelevant of age.  I am sure the Hedge End Depot 
inspection team will vouch for this as they always comment on the quality of vehicle 
presented to them.  Thank you – I hope my comments have some bearing on your 
decision.   

 

• We use all types of cars, all ages.  I don’t see the point of an age related cut off point of 
12 years.  I would be happier with 3 tests a year, rather than a 12 year cut off point.  Not 
all drivers have big money to spend on nice new cars – Its all about balance.   

 

• Yes certificate of compliance twice a year I agree with this due to vehicle safety rules.  
Having an older car like mine makes no difference.  There are buses on the road that 
are 20 years old carrying up to 96 people at a time so please keep the ruling as it is.   

 

• If these proposals come in it will put me and a lot of other drivers I know out of work.  
We are all struggling now to keep the jobs.  I’ve been a taxi driver for 15 years and 
never had any problem with older cars so long as they are well maintained.  Sometimes 
better than new models.   

 

• I feel that given the current economic climate this measure would put many owners out 
of business.  Work levels are now lower than at any time in the 30 years I have been a 
driver  

 

• The whole purpose of a plate test in addition to a regular MOT is to ensure the safety 
and suitability of the vehicle.  My 2002 registered Mercedes is in excellent condition, 
required one ball joint to be changed during its most recent test, and has several years 
usage left in it.  When you consider this is an exempt vehicle used solely to transport 
business customers who demand a high service level then a blanket age restriction 
clearly is not the solution.  It is not clear from the letter how many complaints have been 
made to the Council/operators about the age of licensed vehicles.  I would have thought 
that the cleanliness of the vehicle and dress code/presentation of the driver would be 
more appropriate area to review.  If the existing plate test is not removing badly 
maintained vehicles from the service then increase the bar.  Age certainly isn’t the 
single element – just the simplest for you to police.   

 

• As long as the cars are clean and tidy there should be ok regardless of age.  I think all 
the cars should use the Council depot for their test.   

 

• I think my vehicle and some that are still circulating around meet conditions, some 
doesn’t. And also I think any vehicle that not the standards should be banned through 
MOT or plate test.   

 

12



• Being a Private hire driver for 20 years + we have never been hit so hard to try and 
make a living.  No one has any money to use taxi.  We spend most of the day sitting 
around not earning money so how do you expect us to get new cars.  I was earning 
more money 10 years ago than I am now – Very strongly against this.  

 

• Cars over 6 years of age are tested twice a year and this seems quite sufficient.  
Furthermore I think you will struggle to permit a sufficient number of cars and drivers to 
fulfil the requirements of the boroughs hackney and private hire needs  

 

• I think now that both hackney and private hire vehicles are required for a 6 month MOT 
this ensures the vehicles are up to standard.  In the present economic climate it is not 
possible to raise funds to finance newer vehicles and it this proposal goes through it will 
put a lot of drivers out of jobs,  As long as the vehicle are clean and tidy and 
mechanically sound what is the need to change and bring hardship to drivers.   

 

• Strongly object to the proposals.  I have through my company supplied vehicles which 
are in excess of 40 years old for weddings, special occasions (until a change in 
legislation prevented it) & the film industry.  These vehicles were maintained to the 
highest standard.  I have heard the proposal came about via a councillor who found 
himself travelling in a HC which was both old (199?) & in an appalling condition inside & 
was therefore totally unfit to be used for public service.  Since it is possible to reduce 
even a 2 year old vehicle to an unfit state, I would suggest that this case was both a 
lack of pride by the owner/driver & also a failure by the licensing department to enforce 
such legislation as is currently in force.  Although both the vehicles I currently operate 
were first registered in 2002, they are maintained to the highest standard mechanically 
& I take great pride in their presentation both internally & externally.  As a matter of 
interest I also apply the same standards to those who drive them.  I have never had any 
objection from any of our clients to the age of my vehicles and I might add that both 
carry their original registration plates so I make no attempt to hide their age or mileage.  
Indeed, I am more than happy for you personally to give your opinion as to their 
continued suitability.  Should I deem that either of my vehicles become impossible to 
meet the requisite standard, I would have no hesitation in replacing it, and I am aware 
that there are a number of other operators/Drivers who share identical beliefs but I 
would ask you not treat all operators and drivers in the same manner as those who are 
unfit to represent the borough.   

 

• The proposed changes would have a devastating effect upon my company as it would 
require an immediate investment of hundreds of thousands of pounds.  I am sure that 
the factor which representatives of the private hire trade involved with discussions 
would have been well aware of and the potential consequences to my business if the 
proposals were introduced. You will be aware that some years ago EBC had an age 
policy with regard to vehicles but that policy was abandoned as it was deemed 
unnecessary so I am surprised therefore that the Council are even contemplating re-
introducing such draconian proposals.  If there is an issue with the standard and 
condition of vehicles licensed by Eastleigh Borough Council then the answer lies within 
the Council’s existing powers.  I am certainly not aware of any licensed vehicles being 
of an inadequate standard but if there are any, then surely that is the whole purpose of 
the Council undertaking an annual test/examination of vehicles to be licensed.  What is 
the point in such examinations/tests if it is not to check on the standards and condition 
of the vehicles being licensed.  An age policy would not, in my view, assist with regard 
to the standard and condition of vehicles.  There are hundreds of vehicles on the road 
of less than 5 years of age which are in very poor condition/standard.  On the other 

13



hand there are also thousands of vehicles of more than 10 years of age which are in 
pristine condition as they are cared for by their owners.  Phipps have been trading for 
over 100 years and I have been running the business for the last 10.  All of our vehicles 
are regularly serviced, repaired and maintained.  We employ 50 drivers and 10 admin 
staff servicing residents in the Eastleigh area to the extent of approx 10000 fares a 
month.  I could not possibly find a substantial cash injection which would require to 
replace my fleet of cars to comply with the new proposal and operate a successful 
business.. Accordingly if the Council seek to impose the proposals I will obviously resist 
and if necessary, take the matter further.   

 

• This is a proposal to which I most strongly object as I believe that it was the condition of 
a limited number of vehicles which has caused this subject to be raised.  Why should 
those of us who take great pride in the presentation of our vehicles by subjected to a 
blanket ban? Surely this is a lack of concern by the Operator/Driver which, dare I 
suggest, would have been noted by a surprise inspection which is permitted under 
current legislation.  The vehicles that I currently drive were both registered in 2002 and I 
am happy to drive them anywhere, any when.  Indeed, both of them travel to France 
and Belgium and have never had a problem, nor have any of our clients ever expressed 
any reservations about travelling in them.  Both Roger Bullen and I, as authorised 
drivers, are, should the vehicle require it, permitted to go to the nearest Valeting Service 
and have it cleaned, even though it is our usual practice to clean each vehicle between 
hiring’s.  I might add that we take pride in our personal presentation as in our cars.  I 
have for approximately 25 years provided chauffer services for weddings and special 
occasions in 45 year old jaguars and will continue to apply the same standards to all my 
private hire bookings.  I would therefore suggest that the most important factor in and 
HC or PH vehicle is the condition of the same and this it is a completely unjustified 
expense to remove a perfectly suitable vehicle from service purely because of its age.  I 
have little doubt that a surprise inspection might well find that there are 5 year old 
vehicles which should not be serving the public.  

 

• Whereas I wholeheartedly agree with part 1 of the proposal – that any vehicles 
submitted by the applicant on initial application or transfer must be no more than 7 
years old from the date of first registration for both hackney and private hire vehicles.  I 
find the second part totally unfair and unreasonable.  An older vehicle now has to be 
tested twice a years, as well as having an MOT.  What has age got to do with the 
suitability of the vehicle to be either a hackney carriage or a private hire vehicle? If the 
vehicle meets the required testing standards then it is deemed to be of a sufficient 
standard.  The majority of drivers take pride in their vehicles and go to great expense to 
keep their vehicle in good running order, otherwise their source of income would dry up.  
My vehicle would fall into part 2.  I am constantly being told how comfortable and roomy 
the vehicle is and I would subsequently have to decide whether to go deep in debt or go 
on the dole.  In addition after receipt of the letter I carried out a straw poll with my 
customers and their main concerns were: 1) Punctuality 2) Comfort 3) Cleanliness & 
having no unpleasant odour 4) Politeness/helpfulness of the driver 5) Feeling safe 
throughout the journey 6) Best route taken.  The age of the vehicle was never 
mentioned.   

 

• If you would like us to have an age limit on cars it would be a good idea if you gave us 
some night clubs so we could earn the money to pay for a new car.  It would also be a 
good idea if you put an age limit on the buses because some of them are older than 
me.   

 

14



• Things are getting harder – having to work longer hrs – without having to have larger 
savings. Being priced out – only ok for people coming from fords with their new taxi 
NVQ and new cars  

 

• Although the proposal may be perceived as a positive move the problem of the expense 
that is involved in buying a newer vehicle is to my understanding has not been 
considered.  The fact there is no jobs out there not many customers to pick up to make 
the money for the car.  Furthermore, all vehicles go through the MOT process twice a 
year.  If you ask me the policy that is currently in progress is an effective one, but the 
newly proposed policy is not fair.  I do not agree to this.   

 

• In the last 5 – 7 years the ‘taxi’ trades takings have been reduced by at least 40% due 
to venues being closed that bought custom to this town, combining with the constant 
new drivers, lack of rate increases.  I honestly believe bringing in age restriction on 
vehicles would be the final nail in the coffin for many drivers so I strongly disagree with 
this proposal.  

 

• I disagree on the principal that private hire are already being MOT twice yearly.  If the 
cars (licensed) were in unsatisfactory condition they wouldn’t pass.  I believe if the car 
is clean and roadworthy this is not a problem also in the nature of the current economic 
situation is this really appropriate to put even more pressure onto people and more 
unemployed drivers in the area.  

 

• How are we supposed to afford a new car when there is not the work out there.  Just 
paying the bills we have is enough let alone taking out a loan for a new car.  

 

• The twice yearly inspection by the Hedge End Depot must determine the condition and 
sustainability of the aged vehicle.  I do not think, due to the present economic climate to 
entertain such a motion!   

 

• My first reaction is why do we need arbitrary age limits policy? We now have 6 monthly 
inspections for cars over 6 years old, perhaps it should be for cars over 3 years old to 
be sure that they are fit for purpose.  These 6 monthly inspections should include the 
condition of seats/bodywork and cleanliness etc, if it doesn’t pass the owner is given 
time to make good/repair the car or its plate is taken away.  I do feel there are 
significant financial implications/consequences to bringing in an age limits proposal as it 
stands.  This concerns the buying of a car less than 7 years old.  It would mean 
probably borrowing thousands of pounds more to buy the vehicles if its rented out the 
rent will be increased, this will cause financial hardship to the driver and families, they 
will want higher fares from the Council, so fares will be higher for the public and they 
will use taxis less.  Form a personal point of view, I could not support a generalised age 
limit policy because I run an Airport Transfer Service, my last vehicle, 7 seater MPV, 
averaged 79000 miles per year over 5 years.  If I had to buy a less than 7 year old 
replacement I would have to borrow thousands of pounds more for the vehicle, then 
have to replace it at 12 years old with almost no resale value, the borrow again for 
another vehicle.  I would have to increase my fares to compensate and would certainly 
loose customers as a consequence.  Also what about low mileage vehicles like 
minibuses/8 seaters that only do school runs, they have little wear and tear and will 
remain perfectly road worthy and good condition for far longer than 12 years.  Perhaps 
taxi vehicles should be categorised by type of work they do.  High and low mileage 
vehicles could be exempt from age limit policy due to the circumstances for the Taxi 
Work.  

15



 

• The licensing Enforcement Officer and Hedge End Depot should be more pro-active in 
enforcing cleanliness of vehicles and their condition.  Modern cars are designed to 
outlast many years.  The Trade in Eastleigh is poor. 

 

• My vote is no – for the past 35 years I have operated W/C access vehicles.  I am 
pleased to more w/c bound people getting out and about like you and I.  Please leave 
w/c access vehicles out of this proposed policy.  Test more, inspect more.  Maybe 14 
years off but no start line,  W/C vehicles are 4 times more expensive than cars.  Many 
W/C vehicles are contracted to schools, hospitals, day centres with contracts lasting 4 
years or more.  It is complicated so a meeting would be good.  

 

• I mainly run wheelchair accessible vehicles which are all on school contracts, some of 
which do very little mileage.  I have 4 vehicles which would fall into the age criteria, one 
of which is 15 years old but has done 60000 miles (2 years mileage for a H/C).  In my 
opinion as long as these specialised vehicles are respectable, they should fall into 
different criteria.  Is the 12 year age limit was brought in it would cost me upwards of 
£50000 to replace these vehicles which would put my business under great pressure.  If 
it does go ahead I would hope it would be phased in over at least 2 years.   

 

• I agree there are some unsuitable vehicles on the road doing school runs but age is not 
always the problem.  I have a 11 years old Mercedes Benz 65,000 like new.  I would 
suggest stricter testing.   

 

• It is not the age of any vehicles it’s the mileage that shows how a vehicle is looked after.  
You will force more and more illegal taxis on to our borough.  Someone must look into 
this rather than looking at this problem.   

 

• I understand reasons for this issue arising but we all know times are hard and cost of 
running cars at the moment are rising and people having to buy new cars wont be 
cheap.  What I don’t understand is there are cars on the rank that I would say should 
not be on there but your policy’s have allowed this.  The age of the car is not the 
problem – it is the driver looking after the car and himself.  Also taking pride in both.  
Also rumours on the rank that people on the working party have bought up this issue 
because they don’t like queuing behind certain drivers with older cars.  I think proper 
policing of cars and drivers should come first.  If these older cars are passed MOT and 
hackney test then maybe your policy should be looked at.  I feel strongly that people at 
the Council should be doing more and having words with companies and drivers about 
the state of cars and not tarring everyone with the same brush.   

 
Yes 
 

• Perhaps at the same time a dress code could be introduced.  Track suit bottoms and 
t shirts are not a good look.  Drivers should take pride in their own appearance as 
well as their cars.   

 

• I think there should be a dress code for all drivers hackney and private hire/  And the 
driver should look clean and fresh as well as their cars 

 

• Totally agree with this policy even the age of 7 years and 12 years is too old 
 

• About time this happened 

16



 

• My simple comment is about time.  Some of the vehicles are an appalling 
advertisement of Eastleigh.  The only caveat I have is that maybe there should be a 
12 month lead in period for existing licensed vehicles over 12 years old but no more. 
Maybe you can now make a start on improving the state of some of the drivers 

 

• Please consider a dress code for hackney and private hire drivers.  Full length 
tailored trousers and shirt with collar. 

 

• This is a reasonable proposal for hire and reward vehicles working in Eastleigh  
 

• I agree with the proposals for all taxis and private hire vehicles but I think that 
disabled cars should have a long like as an taxi/private hire due to the initial cost of 
buying these cars.  As long as they are kept in good condition and are still capable 
of doing their job so I think that time limit could be extended to 15 years +.  But I 
appreciate that the condition and look of cars reflect on Eastleigh Borough Council 
taxi trade and the owners business. 

 

• Yes I agree for cars.  But disagree for wheelchair acc vehicles, I think should be 
extended to 15 years old as the cost of buying them is more.  I think drivers will not 
purchase them as there is not enough work in Eastleigh to repay the cost over 12 
years or maybe no age limit for wheelchair vehicles 

 

• In agreeing to allow 12 year old cars to continue running with an Eastleigh plate, the 
Council is setting the bar very low in terms of the quality of service offered to 
customers.  Also the Council provides a level playing field.  BAA sets a very high 
standard by insisting that all vehicles operated by Checker Cars are no more than 3 
years old so our costs are higher but Checkers fares must remain competitive.   

 

• A fair compromise seeing as vehicles seem to last longer these days.  
 

• Some vehicles in the borough are old, tatty and a disgrace, it gives a bad impression 
of Eastleigh district.  Even the proposal is lenient, it would not be un-reasonable to 
lower limits still further ie 3 years for new licences and 7 years for renewal.  A dress 
code for drivers should also be enforced. 

 

• As long as when car of 7 years or under is registered we are able to keep it for until 
it is 12 years old.  

 

• Private hire vehicles should have the same maintenance requirement as hackney 
carriage i.e. tested every 6 months.   

 

• This proposal will assist in enhancing the presentation of Eastleigh Borough to its 
visitors and residents.  A positive step to improve vehicle quality should be paired 
with enforcement of personal grooming and dress code standards.   

17



18

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3 
 

Council  First licensed  Age licensed up to 

Basingstoke 
and Deane 

Hackney – No more than 3 
years  
Private Hire – No more than 3 
years 

Hackney – Up to 8 years unless 
deemed in exceptional condition & 
requires a certificate of compliance 
every 4 months 
Private Hire – Up to 5 years unless 
deemed in exception condition but 
requires a certificate of compliance 
every 4 months 

Portsmouth 
City Council 

Hackney & Private Hire - No 
more than 6 years 
Wheel Chair – no more than 4 
years  

Hackney & Private Hire  - up to 8 
years providing in good mechanical 
& cosmetic condition & with a well 
documented service history  
Wheel Chair – up to 12 years 

Test Valley Hackney & Private Hire – No 
more than 3 years old  

Hackney & Private Hire – No more 
than 8 years old (just introduced 
policy – reducing the upper age 
limit from 15 years to 8 years over 3 
years) 

New Forest Hackney & Private Hire – No 
more than 8 years 

No Upper Age Limit 

Fareham Hackney – no more than 2 
years 
Private Hire – no age limit but 
must be immaculate condition 

Hackney – No more than 5 years 
old 
Private Hire – no age limit but must 
be in immaculate condition 

Gosport Hackney & Private Hire – No 
more than 3 years unless 
exceptional circumstances  
Wheelchair  - no age limit 

Hackney & Private Hire – No more 
than 8 years old 

Hart  Hackney & Private Hire – no 
more than 3 years 
Wheelchair – no more than 4 
years 

Hackney & Private Hire – no more 
than 7 years old unless exceptional 
condition and circumstances 
Wheelchair – up to 10 years 

Rushmoor Hackney – only licensed if 
brand new (under 28 days old)  
Private Hire – no age limit 

No upper age limit  

Winchester Hackney  - no more than 3 
years 
Private Hire – no more than 5 
years 

Hackney & Private Hire – up to 6 
years unless at the discretion of an 
authorised officer 

Southampton Hackney and Private Hire – 
No lower limit 

Specifically designed HC and 
wheel chair accessible – up to 10 
years 
All other Vehicles – no more than 
7 years  

 

19



20

This page is intentionally left blank



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

10 February 2014 

POLLING REVIEW 2013/14 

Report of the Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

It is recommended that: 

(1) The findings of the Polling Review 2013/14 be noted, and the Committee’s 
thanks to respondents be recorded; 

(2) The polling station for HG and HG(2) be moved from Wellstead Primary 
School, Wellstead Way to The Salvation Army Church and Community 
Centre, White’s Way for the forthcoming European and Borough elections on 
Thursday 22 May 2014 and for all future elections held in that area; and 

(3) That all other existing arrangements in respect of polling districts and polling 
places remain as at present. 

 

Summary 
 
The Electoral Registration and Administration Act 2013 introduced a new timetable for the 
formal review of polling districts and polling places. This meant the Council needed to start 
and complete a review between 1 October 2013 and 31 January 2015. This review has 
been carried out and this report sets out the comments received during a consultation and 
suggests changes for future elections.  

Statutory Powers 
 
Representation of the People Act 1983 

Electoral Registration and Administration Act 2013 

 

Introduction 

1. The Electoral Registration and Administration Act 2013 introduced a change 
to the timing of compulsory reviews of UK Parliamentary polling districts and 
polling places. The Act requires a review to be started and completed 
between 1 October 2013 and 31 January 2015. Taking into account the 
planned elections in 2014 it was considered appropriate to carry out this 
review as soon as possible to ensure any resulting changes could be made in 
time for the elections on 22 May 2014.  

Agenda Item 5

21



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

2. This review has now been carried out. It is required that the review look at UK 
Parliamentary polling districts and places but it can not include any changes to 
constituency boundaries. Polling districts and polling places for other elections 
are not automatically part of the review but as these are based on 
Parliamentary arrangements they have been taken into consideration as part 
of the review.  The review covered all polling districts and polling places within 
the Borough of Eastleigh which includes the Eastleigh Parliamentary 
Constituency and part of the Winchester Parliamentary Constituency.  

3. The last full review was undertaken in 2011/12, which was followed by a 
smaller, more focused review which looked at the arrangements in 
Bishopstoke West and Eastleigh Central.  

Definitions 

4. A polling district is a geographical sub-division of an electoral area, i.e. a UK 
Parliamentary constituency, a European Parliamentary electoral region, a 
ward or an electoral division. It is the responsibility of the Borough Council to 
divide its area into polling districts, and for keeping the polling districts under 
review.  

5. A polling place is a geographical area in which a polling station is located. 
However, as there is no legal definition of what a polling place is, the 
geographical area could be defined as tightly as a particular building or as 
widely as the entire polling district. It is the responsibility of the Borough 
Council to designate the polling places, and for keeping the polling places 
under review.  

6. A polling station is the actual area where the process of voting takes place, 
and must be located within the polling place designated for the particular 
polling district. The Returning Officer for the particular election must provide a 
sufficient number of polling stations, and allot the electors to those polling 
stations in such manner as he or she thinks the most convenient.  

Review Procedure 

7. The consultation period ran from 1 November 2013 to 13 December 2013. 
This involved a consultation notice and background information being placed 
on the Council’s website, notices being placed in a local newspaper and at 
various public places across the Borough and direct mailing to borough and 
county Councillors, parish councils and to persons and organisations with 
particular expertise in relation to access to premises for people with different 
forms of disability and local community groups.  

8. The Council also consulted the two (Acting) Returning Officers for the area, as 
required by the legislation.  

Representations received 

 

22



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

9. Only two comments were received to the consultation, which can be 
summarised as follows: 

(i) One Borough Councillor raised concerns relating to the lack of voting 
facility on North Millers Dale. She advised that it had previously been 
agreed that because of difficulties in gaining access to the Community 
Hall, there would not be a Polling Station in this area. The Councillor 
felt that the Community Hall should be available for this service and the 
Yellow Dot Nursery should be made to allow this to happen. She 
expressed very strong feelings on this point stating that the move to 
The Hilt would result in less people voting from North Millers Dale and 
that would be detrimental to democracy. 

(ii) The Eastleigh and District Disability Forum advised that they did not 
know all polling stations but raised concerns regarding: 

- the lack of dropped kerbs in the vicinity of Cranbury Community 
Centre; and 

- the poor access to the Emmanuel Hall, Cherbourg Road. 

10. The concerns regarding North Millers Dale are addressed in some detail in the 
response of the Acting Returning Officer below. The issues raised by the 
Eastleigh and District Disability Forum will be raised with Hampshire County 
Council as Highways Authority. 

11. Responses were received from both Acting Returning Officers for the area. 
The comments of the Acting Returning Officer for the Eastleigh Parliamentary 
Constituency, Richard Ward, were: 

“I am writing to provide my comments on the polling review 2013/14 being 
undertaken by Eastleigh Borough Council. I am Acting Returning Officer for 
the Eastleigh Parliamentary Constituency which is wholly within the area of 
Eastleigh Borough Council. I am aware that part of the Borough of Eastleigh 
forms part of the Winchester Parliamentary Constituency.  

I have comments to make on the following specific polling places: 

WARDS: Bursledon & Old Netley, Hiltingbury East, Botley 
Polling Districts: BD, CH, HP 
Polling Stations: Manor House public House, Portsmouth Road, Old Netley; 
Age Concern Centre, Brownhill Road, Chandler’s Ford; and the Peartree Inn, 
Winchester Road, Boorley Green 
The last full review of polling places in the Borough took place in 2010/11. 
Following this review it was agreed to close the above mentioned polling 
stations. Since this took place I have only received one comment from a 
member of the public regarding these changes. He was disappointed to see 
the closure of the Peartree Inn as a polling station as he found this to be a 
convenient location, within walking distance. With such changes there will 
always be electors who have to travel further and those who will have a 
shorter distance to travel. I am satisfied that the alternative arrangements put 

23



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

in place in these polling places are satisfactory as evidenced by the lack of 
negative comments.  

 
WARDS: Bishopstoke West and Eastleigh Central 
Polling Districts: AB, AD, DC, DD, DE 
As part of the review in 2010/11 it was requested that further work be 
undertaken to achieve greater efficiencies in respect of polling districts and 
voting arrangements in Bishopstoke West and Eastleigh Central. A review 
was undertaken of these two areas and as a result the following changes took 
place: 

- In Bishopstoke West, the polling stations for AB and AD, which were 
at Saint Mary’s Church Room and Stoke Park Junior School 
respectively, were combined into a double polling station at the 
Methodist Church, Sedgwick Road; 

- In Eastleigh Central, the polling stations for DD and DE which were 
at the Eastleigh Baptist Church, Wells Place and the Scout Hut, 
Southampton Road respectively were combined into a double 
polling station at Cranbury Community Centre, Cranbury Road; and 

- In Eastleigh Central, the DC polling station, which was at the 
Cranbury Community Centre, was relocated to the Community 
Centre/Guide Building, Hoddinott Road.  

 
In relation to the above changes I have received one comment from a resident 
of Fair Oak Road complaining that she has to travel over a mile to her polling 
station at the Methodist Church when there is another polling station in a 
closer location. This is correct but the closer polling station falls within a 
different polling district. Unfortunately this situation does sometimes occur 
when there is no suitable venue for a polling station within the centre of a 
polling district. However I am satisfied that in this case the elector does not 
have a detrimental distance to travel and it is a route that has good public 
transport links.  
 
WARD: Eastleigh South 
Polling District: DJ 
Polling Station: Emmanuel Hall, Cherbourg Road, Eastleigh 
Following the elections in May 2011 I received several comments from staff 
and members of the public advising the hall was too small raising concerns of 
privacy and inadequate disabled access. On further investigation it appeared 
that whilst I expected the polling station to be in a large hall, as for previous 
elections, on this occasion we were allocated a smaller room within the same 
venue. This has been noted and systems amended to ensure that the larger 
room will be available in future.  
 
WARD: Hiltingbury West 
Polling District: CK 
Polling Station: The Hilt, Hiltingbury Recreation Ground 
For the Police and Crime Commissioner election held in November 2012 it 
was decided to hire The Hilt as the polling station for electors in the CK polling 
district. It was necessary to find an alternative as the usual venue, the Yellow 
Dot Nursery, was unavailable.  
 

24



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

Whilst noting that this falls within the Winchester Parliamentary Constituency I 
did not receive any negative comments regarding the use of The Hilt on this 
occasion and the staff working at the venue were very happy with the 
facilities. This combined with the problems that had been experienced with 
booking the Yellow Dot Nursery, meant this change was made permanent. 
The Yellow Dot Nursery is a privately run nursery and there are significant 
cost implications as well as causing difficulty for parents should it be closed 
for an election. This has become an increasing concern with the additional 
elections, such as those for the Police and Crime Commissioner and for the 
Referendum on alternative voting arrangements, and where election dates are 
moved from the usual first Thursday in May, as will be case in 2014.  
 
There have been a couple of comments regarding the change from members 
of the public and from local councillors. The Chairman of the North Millers 
Dale Community Association advised that he had received comments from 
local residents who wanted the benefit of the local polling station to be 
restored. He had also received a comment from a resident who felt many 
people would not be able or bother to go to The Hilt to vote.  
 
Taking into account the issues faced with booking the previous venue and the 
impact of this on the business at that venue it is suggested that The Hilt 
remain as the polling station for this area. Consideration has been given to 
alternatives but there are no other suitable premises within North Millers Dale 
with the only other ‘public’ venue being the local pub which does not have a 
suitable function room. It would be preferable not to use portable polling 
stations as these are not accessible to disabled voters. The use of 
a portacabin as a polling station would also have an impact on the staff as 
they work 16 hours on election days and they waiver the working time 
directive which means a long day without breaks in unsuitable 
accommodation. There is also an impact on the local residents as the use of a 
generator for heating and light will give out noise and finally the cost 
implications of hiring the portacabin, portable toilet facilities and a generator. 
 
Number of Electors Eligible to Vote at Polling Stations 
 
The Electoral Commission have issued guidance suggesting that there should 
not be more than 2,500 electors eligible to vote at each polling station. There 
are no polling stations in the Eastleigh Borough area that exceed this number. 
In fact there are only 4 polling stations that exceed 2,000: the Guide Building, 
Hoddinott Road, Eastleigh; Shakespeare Junior School, St Catherine’s Road, 
Eastleigh;  the Village Hall, St Johns Road, Hedge End; and Drummond 
Community Centre, Drummond Road, Hedge End. I am satisfied that these 
polling stations remain suitable for the number of electors and I have not 
received any comments or complaints. As such I am not suggesting any 
changes to these polling stations. 
 
Conclusions 
 
Aside from the above comments, I consider that all polling stations in the 
Eastleigh Borough area are suitable. I have considered access for all electors 

25



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

including those with a disability and the facilities required for staff and 
equipment.” 

 
12. The comments of the Acting Returning Officer for the Winchester 

Parliamentary Constituency, Stephen Whetnell, were: 

 
“I am Acting Returning Officer for the Winchester Parliamentary Constituency. 
 
I have been asked whether I wish to make any comments on the Polling 
Review 2013/14 currently being undertaken by Eastleigh Borough Council, as 
part of the Borough’s administrative area comes within the Winchester 
Parliamentary Constituency. 
 
In conducting the administration of the 2010 General Election I had no 
reported problems with the location of any of the polling places within the 
Eastleigh Borough area and had no need to make any recommendations 
about them. 
 
I have seen the comments made by Richard Ward, who as the Eastleigh 
Returning Officer is responsible for the conduct of other elections in this area. 
I support the approach now being taken in the Review in respect of polling 
places within the Winchester Parliamentary Constituency.” 

 
13. Following the close of the consultation the Acting Returning Officer for 

Eastleigh Parliamentary Constituency has advised that he has been made 
aware of a potential new polling station for polling districts HG and HG(2). 
This would involve moving the polling station from Wellstead Primary School, 
Wellstead Way to The Salvation Army Church and Community Centre, 
White’s Way.  

14. Where possible it has been considered advantageous to move polling stations 
away from schools to avoid the potential for school closures on election days. 
With this is mind a visit was made to the Salvation Army property and it was 
found to be suitable for a polling station with ample parking, disabled access 
and plenty of space to locate a double polling station within the building. 

15. The Acting Returning Officer is therefore proposing that the polling station for 
HG and HG(2) is moved to The Salvation Army Church and Community 
Centre, White’s Way for the forthcoming European and Borough elections on 
Thursday 22 May 2014 and for all future elections held in that area. 

16. This proposal has been sent to the Borough ward councillors, who both 
replied advising that it is a good idea and they have no objections.  

Financial Implications 

17. The review has been conducted within existing staff resources and there are 
no financial implications as a result of the recommendations in this report. 

26



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

Risk Assessment 

18. As highlighted at the start of this report, the law places a duty on the Council 
to conduct reviews and, specifically within this, to ensure safe and appropriate 
access arrangements for both voters and staff. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

19. The aforementioned duty to conduct the review includes a responsibility to 
ensure that everyone who is entitled to vote can do so with equality of access 
– from actual arrangements at the polling station (such as provision of ramps 
and wide doors to enable those voters in a wheelchair to cast their vote) to the 
polling station being within reasonable proximity to their home address.  

Conclusion 

20. This review considers the arrangements for voting in the Borough of 
Eastleigh. Following a period of consultation, views have been submitted on 
the current arrangements and a small change is proposed. It is recommended 
that consideration be given to making this change and to maintaining the 
current arrangements for all other polling districts and polling places. 

RICHARD WARD 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services / Returning Officer 

 
Date: 17 December 2013 
Contact Officer: Alison Ball 
Tel No: 023 8068 8111 
e-mail: alison.ball@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: None 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

None 

27



28

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	4 Proposed Vehicle Age Policy
	Age Policy appendix 1
	Age Policy - appendix 2
	Age Policy appendix 3

	5 Polling Review 2013/14

